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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The site of the 17th century Indian yillfige of Nocoroco
is situated on a point of land, called Mount Oswald, which
extends into Tomoka Basin. This point of land is bordered
on the west by the Tomoka River, and on the east by the
Halifax River. Fortunately, a first-hand description of
this area was made by Alvaro Mexia during the year 1605;
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A translation of Mexia's description is as follows:
"Continuing your way for a distance of five
leagues (from a certain fresh-water lake) a footpath

is taken through the gullies, traversing a wood of
live-oaks, and you emerge at a bay which is called
Nocoroco, where canoes are boarded. This bay has a
gravelly bottom and there is a cove on the west side,
and on the flats of the said cove are four villages.

On the point of land extending on the south is the

town of Nocoroco. A dense woods of live-oaks runs
along thé west side of the bay, and along the east
shore stretches a thorney thicket."” (Higgs, 1951:270).

Some changes have occurred in the area since Mexia's
visit, bup the vegetation is remarkably similar to that of
the origj#nal description. In fact, Higgs reports that the
live~ocak stand mentioned by Mexia "... is still extant - a
verdant oasis in the arid beach terrain (Ibid)."

Griffin and Smith (1949:342-343) have reported that
significant erosion of the area has taken place since the
1605 visit. The gravel bottom of the bay is not apparent
at this time, but the existing muck deposits in the bay could
be representative of very recent deposition. This hypothesis
is somewhat substantiated by the discovery of a brick plat-
form located on the west shore of the bay. This platform,
presumably built between 1766 and 1835, was covered by
approximately 9 inches of muck (Ibid). "In view of the
evidence for the accumulation of muck around Tomoka Basin, it
appears likely that Mexia's description of the bay as
gravelly bottomed may also be correct. Deposits of coquina

" rock are common in this region; the point on which Nocoroco
was located is underlain by it " (Griffin and Smith, 1949:343),.
They also characterize the extant vegetation on the site as
indicative of a young hammock. This is due to the clearing
of the area for agricultural purposes during the 18th century
(Ibid:342). At the present time, the area, excepting the
beach erosion, closely approximates the physical environment
reported in 1605. The area is under public ownership, and
has been preserved from the urban encroachment that has
affected much of Volusia County. Some drainage canals have
been cut through the marsh areas as part of the local
mosquito control program.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Nocoroco was apparently a EQQiébanwJﬁilagemthat“mas
in existence at least as early 605. In all probablllty,

this site extends back in time to some degree, but its
known temporal placement énhances its significance. Exca-
vations were conducted on this site in the late l940'svhy
John W. Grlﬁg&n'and Hale G, th (1949), "and the artifact
assemblage covered stro ”“’“indiéétedfthat this was the
site of Nocoroco reported by Mexia in 1605, Ceramlcs B
represented the major portion of the artifacts, although

a pair of- scissors, a split bone awl, and a shell spoon
weré récovered” (Grlf?in and Smith, "1949:355 5Y. The pro-
venience of the scissors within the excavation units
deflnlteﬁg ties the site to an historical phase, but the
Ceramics ®ffer the major evidence Totr “a €igHE chronolo-
gical placement. A minor amount of San Marcos Complicated
Stamped was excavated at Nocoroco, and~is datéd from the
Early Spanlsh Colonial Period in St. Augustine (Smith, 1948)
Approx1mately 50% of the potsherds belong to the St, Johns
serles, with pIaini“wares predomlnatlng. This presents an °
1nterest1ng plcture, primarily because St, Johns Check
Stamped is the major aboriginal ceramic type of the St.
Johns series in St. Augustine., Evidently Nocoroco repre-
sents a very earlywtran51tlonal 51te, moving toward the
Mission period influences, and away from _totally 1ndlglnous
Gultural traits, The partlcular location of Ehis site would
also allow for influences coming in from the late Glades
“tradition.” Nocoroco evidently representy oiie 6f & small
Humbeér of sites which manifests an artifac S¢ age’
1anUenced by early European 1mpact. This contrasts ‘greatly
Wwith the Titeér-sites-of the Miwsion period which are
products of a great deal of European influence and are
comparatively quite numerous.

The actual fate of the village of Nocoroco after
Mexia's visit in 1605 is unknown, but a legend concerning
"Tomokie" has gained wide popular acclaim and become part
of the region's oral heritage. Accordlng to the legend,
the Indians regarded a certain spring with awesome super-
stition. Its waters were believed to possess curative
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NAME AND TITLE:

Daniel T. Penton, Historic Site Specialist

ORGANIZATION

Division of Archives, History & Records Mgt

DATE

11/16/71

STREET AND NUMBER:

Department of State - The Capitol

CITY OR TOWN:

Tallahas

CODE

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

Stgte  [X Local [J]

>

National

Name

Title

Date

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Ogr/wﬁj%ﬂz\ Zétéw

Chief, Office of Archeology and Higforic Preservation

Date

ATTEST:

Date

GP O 901.087
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powers, and was called the "water of life". Tomokie, giant

chief of his warriors, did not share in this belief. He
greatly offended the members of other tribes by drinking out
of the spring with a sacred cup, never before touched by
human hands, and brought war on his land by the other tribes.
Tomokie was unharmed until Oluta, a beautiful enemy maiden,
fired an arrow that pierced his heart. She grabbed the cup
from the dead Tomokie's hand, only to be struck by a poisoned
arrow, causing her to fall dead. This so enraged her tribe
that they did not stop until every member of Tomokie's band
was dead. This popular legend holds the cup to be in the
possession of Florida Indians at the present time.

This legend is memorialized by a group of statuary

~which was executed by Fred Dana Mayth and donated to the park.

A document, dated November 1 1569 by Captain Antonio

de Prado, states that a blockhouse waS'to be built in a

place called Nocoroco "... which is situated between two
rivers, one which goes to the port of Matanzas and the other
to that of Mosquitos." (Connor, 1925:291). There are no

further records available on this proposed blockhouse, and
the plans for such a blockhouse probably never materialized.
In summary, the site of Nocoroco is significant for a
number of reasons. It is a site known to have been occupied
in 1605, and archaeologlcal evidence indicates that European
acculturation was just beginning to be expressed in the
mgterlal culture of this group. 1In addition, this site seems
to be the origin of the popular legend of Tomokie; an inte-
gral part of the local heritage. It is a site which has
contributed greatly to the understanding of Florida's early
history, and also holds the potential for yleldlng more
data as new excavations are initiated.
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